

MCCPS Board of Trustees

Governance Committee Meeting - By-Laws Approval

Published on July 15, 2020 at 7:46 AM EDT

Date and Time

Thursday July 16, 2020 at 7:00 PM EDT

July Governance Meeting - By-Laws Approval:

Join Zoom Meeting

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84179925999?pwd=QTZSRIBhc0FteFBrek9rNkpTSVgzZz09

Meeting ID: 841 7992 5999 Password: 006377

Agenda

	Purpose	Presenter	Time	
I. Opening Items			7:00 PM	
A. Record Attendance		Karl Smith	1 m	
B. Call the Meeting to Order		Karl Smith	1 m	
In light of the ongoing COVID-19 Coronavirus outbreak, Governor Baker issued an emergency Order on March 12, 2020, allowing public bodies greater flexibility in utilizing technology in the conduct of meetings under the Open Meeting Law. This committee makes a motion to accept this Executive Order for this meeting of the Governance Committee, on July 16, 2020.				
C. Approve Minutes	Approve Minutes	Karl Smith	5 m	
Approve minutes for Governance Monthly Meeting on July 7, 2020				
II. Governance Matters			7:07 PM	
A. By-Laws Final Review and Approval	Discuss	Karl Smith	10 m	
Final edits from checklist to be reviewed and approved to be forwarded	I to the Board.			
III. Closing Items			7:17 PM	
A. Adjourn Meeting	Vote			

Cover Sheet

Approve Minutes

Section:	I. Opening Items
Item:	C. Approve Minutes
Purpose:	Approve Minutes
Submitted by:	
Related Material:	Minutes for Governance Monthly Meeting on July 7, 2020



MCCPS Board of Trustees

Minutes

Governance Monthly Meeting

Date and Time Tuesday July 7, 2020 at 7:00 PM

Location

DRAF

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84327407591?pwd=ei9mRzI2QU9OM1E1d2xMRnU3YmJEUT09

July Governance Meeting:

Join Zoom Meeting https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84179925999?pwd=QTZSRIBhc0FteFBrek9rNkpTSVgzZz09

Meeting ID: 841 7992 5999 Password: 006377

Committee Members Present

Christopher Riegle (remote), Cynthia Canavan (remote), Karl Smith (remote), Kay O'Dwyer (remote), Paul Baker (remote), Peter Cohen (remote)

Committee Members Absent

Elizabeth Burns, Jeanne Smith

I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order

Karl Smith called a meeting of the Governance committee of MCCPS Board of Trustees to order on Tuesday Jul 7, 2020 @ 7:08 PM at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84327407591?pwd=ei9mRzl2QU9OM1E1d2xMRnU3YmJEUT09

Karl Smith made a motion to Accept the Governor's executive order allowing for remote meetings.

Paul Baker seconded the motion.

In light of the ongoing COVID-19 Coronavirus outbreak, Governor Baker issued an emergency Order on March 12, 2020, allowing public bodies greater flexibility in utilizing technology in the conduct of meetings under the Open Meeting Law. This committee makes a motion to accept this Executive Order for this meeting of the Governance Committee, on July 7, 2020 The committee **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll CallJeanne SmithAbsentKay O'DwyerAyeElizabeth BurnsAbsentCynthia CanavanAyeChristopher RiegtAyeKarl SmithAyePaul BakerAye

C. Approve Minutes

Paul Baker made a motion to approve the minutes from Governance Monthly Meeting on 06-02-20.

Kay O'Dwyer seconded the motion.

The committee **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll CallKay O'DwyerAyeKarl SmithAyeElizabeth BurnsAbsentChristopher Riegle AyeJeanne SmithJeanne SmithAbsentCynthia CanavanAyePaul BakerAye

II. Governance Matters

A. Board Meeting Update

Paul Baker updated the Governance Committee on the latest Board meetings. In order of occurrence, the 3 hour retreat (first of two meetings) held on Saturday, June 13th.

He highlighted the topics covered, including (but not limited to):

- · MCCPS by-laws
- · Board committee goals
- · Job descriptions
- Development efforts
- Voting of the Officers and Chairs
- · Re-opening scenarios 3 standard

Additionally Mr. Baker provided the update for the Board of Trustees meeting held on June 30th.

For this meeting, Paul and Dr. Cohen provided their insights on the following topics covered during that meeting:

- HOS report
- Development
- Results of the teacher and parent surveys
- Enrollment estimates
- · Charter renewal remediation item (incorporate Nahant and Swampscott into 'district')

Based on some questions and requests posed by the group, Dr. Cohen noted he will approach the superintendents of both towns and plan meetings within the next few weeks.

B. Board Composition

The group reviewed the recent developments to the team including the departure of Steven Viega and Fred Ferris, along with the pending term expiration of Ellen Lodgen and Ian Hunt - both in October 2020.

Additional discussions surrounded the potential candidates based on the interest they have expressed.

Specifically the following individuals were reviewed:

- Ndak Toure
- James Rogers
- Alf Wilson

It was noted that the group should consider searching for a new Chair of Development to replace Ms. Lodgen when her term expires.

C. By-Laws Update

Based on the remaining open items regarding the Charter By-Laws checklist that was circulated in advance of the meeting, the group discussed in detail the proposed responses and updates.

Each item was reviewed and deliberated with suggested edits being updated on the latest draft by-laws document.

As not all members were able to re-read the updated document entirely, it was suggested that Governance hold a special meeting next week in order to vote on, (hopefully) approve the document, and send it along to the Board of Trustees for their review and approval, and have that provided at least two weeks in advance of the next scheduled Board retreat / meeting.

Karl Smith made a motion to Schedule a special meeting of Governance Committee to review and approve the final draft of the updated by-laws to presentation to the Board of Trustees. Proposed date: Thursday, July 16th - 7 PM.

Paul Baker seconded the motion.

The committee **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Karl SmithAyeCynthia CanavanAyeKay O'DwyerAyeJeanne SmithAbsentChristopher RiegleAyeElizabeth BurnsAbsentPaul BakerAye

D. Review of Proposed Calendar

Special meeting now scheduled for Thursday, July 16th - 7 PM (15 minutes)

August 4th - 7 PM - plan is to conduct potential Board member interviews on prospective candidates.

September - Board handbook / orientation October - Review of BOT / binder. Any additional areas of training to be considered as needed / identified.

III. Other Business

A. Planning for future meeting

B. Board training discussion / planning

Some suggestions regarding the August 1st board retreat included training for Open Meeting Laws -

Possibly requesting from the Essex county Attorney General's office training or the availability of a recorded session.

Additionally the group considered contacting BOT - maybe they can provide some training to the Board.

Karl Smith made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Kay O'Dwyer seconded the motion.

The committee **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

Paul BakerAyeKarl SmithAyeChristopher Riegle AyeKay O'DwyerAyeJeanne SmithAbsentElizabeth BurnsAbsentCynthia CanavanAye

IV. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Karl Smith

Documents used during the meeting

• MCCPS Trustees Composition Report-May-2020.docx

Cover Sheet

By-Laws Final Review and Approval

II. Governance Matters
A. By-Laws Final Review and Approval
Discuss
BYLAWS Working Copy, 2020-July 13, 2020.docx

By-Laws of the Marblehead Community Charter Public School

ARTICLE I Purposes

Section 1: Recognizing that it takes an entire community to educate a child, the mission of the Marblehead Community Charter Public School (hereinafter the School or MCCPS) is to create a partnership among faculty, staff, students, parents and community members, and that will provide our early adolescents with the support necessary to reach their highest individual potential intellectually, artistically, socially, emotionally, and physically, so they are highly contributing members of our democratic society; and to provide a laboratory for examining, developing, and fostering the interrelatedness of the school as a learning community and the community as a learning environment.

Section 2: MCCPS is a public entity established by the granting of a charter by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (hereinafter the State), pursuant to MGL Chapter.71, §89.

ARTICLE II Board of Trustees

Section 1: The Board of Trustees (hereinafter the Board) shall consist of at least nine (9) Trustees and not more than fifteen (15) Trustees. In alignment with the School's Charter, "MCCPS is to be a teacher-led, student-focused school, faculty and staff members will be an integral part of every aspect of school operations," MCCPS faculty and staff members (hereafter "Teachers") are encouraged to serve on the Board. The Board of Trustees shall include at least one (1) current Teacher, and one (1) parent of a current Charter School student as members. Teachers can hold up to three (3) of the seats on the Board. MCCPS' Board of Trustees is a public entity, which operates independently of any school committee. All Trustees will comply with the State Conflict of Interest Laws, M.G.L. 268A. The Head of School, as an ex officio member of the Board, is not considered a "Teacher" for the purpose of this seat limitation. All Trustees shall have identical rights and responsibilities, except where otherwise determined in these By-Laws. The Board is a public entity and its members are each considered special State employees pursuant to Massachusetts law. The Board holds the charter from the State and is responsible for:

- a) ensuring that the School complies with all applicable laws and regulations; and
- b) ensuring the school is an academic success, organizationally viable, faithful to the terms of its charter, and earns charter renewal.

Section 2: Board members shall be sought who reflect the qualities, qualifications, and diversity determined by the needs of the Board. The Board of Trustees may not discriminate against potential members on the basis of age, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, race, national origin, ancestry, religion, marital status, or non-disqualifying handicap or mental condition.

Section 3: The Governance Committee shall present the qualifications of potential Trustees to the Board for review, discussion, and vote at any regularly scheduled Board meeting. The Board will exercise due diligence in assessing the suitability of candidates for Board membership with respect to potential conflicts of interest and areas of skill and expertise that will be of value to the Board of Trustees, such due diligence to occur prior to a vote by the Board of Trustees to request the Commissioner to appoint the proposed member. Prior to submitting a candidate to the Commissioner for approval, the Board of Trustees must determine that no financial interests under G.L. c. 268A exist which may preclude a majority of the Board from participating in deliberations or voting on certain matters within the scope of the Board's authority. Any Trustee positions to be filled on the Board shall be by an affirmative vote of a majority of the sitting Trustees attending the meeting, including those members of the Board who participate remotely in

compliance with the legal requirements as set forth in M.G.L.c. 30A, section 20 (d), and 940 CMR 29.10 (the Open Meeting Law and the supporting Regulations).

Section 4: Trustees shall take office upon approval by the State. Trustees shall serve a term of three (3) years from the date of their appointments, or until their successors are seated. After appointment, the term of a Trustee may not be reduced by a vote of the members of the Board except for cause as specified in these By-Laws, and removal shall follow the procedures as set forth in Article II, Section 7. No Trustee shall serve more than two (2) consecutive, three-year terms. Fulfilling an incomplete term is not considered part of the term limit. Trustees shall serve staggered terms in order to maintain Board continuity and ensure new perspectives.

Section 5: Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Trustees may be filled, upon recommendation of a qualified candidate by the Governance Committee, by the affirmative vote of the majority of a quorum of Trustees in attendance at the meeting, including those members of the Board who participate remotely in compliance with the legal requirements as set forth in M.G.L.c. 30A, section 20 (d), and 940 CMR 29.10 (the Open Meeting Law and the supporting Regulations). A Trustee approved to fill the vacancy shall be appointed for the unexpired term of their predecessor.

Section 6: A Trustee may resign at any time by filing a written resignation with the Chair or the Clerk of the Board. Such resignations shall be effective upon receipt. A Trustee who misses three regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Trustees without cause during one academic year may be subject to removal pursuant to Article II, Section 7. Their place on the Board of Trustees shall be filled pursuant to Article II, Section 5 above.

Section 7: The Board may remove any Trustee for cause by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the seated Board of Trustees, in attendance at a meeting, including those members of the Board who participate remotely in compliance with the legal requirements as set forth in M.G.L.c. 30A, section 20 (d), and 940 CMR 29.10 (the Open Meeting Law and the supporting Regulations), at any regular or special meeting of the Board, provided that a statement of the reason or reasons for removal shall have been mailed by Registered Mail to the Trustee proposed for removal at least thirty (30) days before any final action is taken by the Board. This statement shall be accompanied by a "Notice" of the date, time, and location the Board is to vote on the removal. The Trustee shall be given an opportunity to be heard and the reasons for their removal are to be discussed and considered by the Board at the date, time and location designated in the "Notice".

Section 8: Members of the Board of Trustees shall:

- a) Receive no payment or honoraria for services provided as a Trustee, except for reimbursement for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the performance of voluntary School activities in accordance with School policies.
- b) Serve the School with the highest degree of undivided duty, loyalty, and care and shall undertake no enterprise to profit personally from their position with the School.
- Comply with any and all State law governing Conflicts of Interest. c)
- d) Not exercise managerial powers over the day-to-day operations of the School.
- e) Fulfill their fiduciary responsibilities, including but not limited to, the duty of loyalty and duty of care, as well as the obligation to oversee the School's budget.
- f) Have no direct or indirect financial interest in the assets or leases of the School; any Trustee who individually or as part of a business or professional firm is involved in business transactions or provides professional services to the School shall disclose this relationship and shall not participate in any vote taken with respect to such transactions or services.

Section 9: Powers:

The Board of Trustees shall oversee the affairs of the School and shall exercise all the powers of the School, Comment [KS1]: Removed "of" based except as otherwise provided by law, by the Charter, or by these By-Laws. The Board of Trustees reserves on grammar suggestion itself alone the power to:

2

- a) Ensure that the School's focus and mission is in accordance with the Charter and By- Laws;
- b) Purchase or sell real estate, rent and/or lease property and enter into contracts related to any such matters;
- c) Pledge, assign, create liens on or security interests in the real or personal property of the School;
- d) Establish or modify investment policies;
- e) Ensure the School is in compliance with the State requirements for core curriculum;
- f) Select, appoint, evaluate and/or remove the School's Head of School;
- g) Delegate, from time to time, powers to the School's Head of School in accordance with these By-Laws except as otherwise provided by law or by the Charter;
- h) Propose amendments to the Charter to the State;
- i) Determine that school policies comply with federal and state laws; and
- j) Oversee the financial affairs of the school and approve the annual budget.
- k) Approve the Annual Report including monitoring progress towards meeting the goals of the school's Accountability Plan and revisions of school policies, including plans for student recruitment and retention

ARTICLE III Officers

Section 1: There shall be four (4) elective Officers of the Board: a Chair, a Vice Chair, a Treasurer, and a Clerk.

Section 2: The Officers shall be nominated from among members of the Board. Members of the Board shall present qualifications of potential Officers to the Board for review, discussion, and vote at the Board's annual meeting. Officers shall be elected by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Trustees in attendance at the annual meeting, including those members of the Board who participate remotely in compliance with the legal requirements as set forth in M.G.L.c. 30A, section 20 (d), and 940 CMR 29.10 (the Open Meeting Law and the supporting Regulations). The School's Head of School may not serve as an Officer of the Board.

Section 3: The newly elected Officers shall take office on July 1 following the close of the previous fiscal year. Board Officers shall be elected for a term of one (1) year or until respective successors assume office. A Trustee may serve more than one (1) term in the same office, but not more than three (3) consecutive terms in the same office.

Section 4: The Trustees may remove any Board Officer without cause, by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Trustees then in attendance, including those members of the Board who participate remotely in compliance with the legal requirements as set forth in M.G.L.c. 30A, section 20 (d), and 940 CMR 29.10 (the Open Meeting Law and the supporting Regulations) at a publicly posted meeting. Any Board Officer may resign from their position at any time by providing oral notice at any meeting of the Board and/or by providing written notice to the Board Chair. Any time a Board Officer position becomes vacant due to removal or resignation, the Trustees shall review and discuss the qualifications of potential successors to fill that vacancy from among the members of the Board. Any new Board Officer shall be elected by an affirmative vote of a majority of Trustees then in attendance, including those members of the Board who participate remotely in compliance with the legal requirements as set forth in M.G.L.c. 30A, section 20 (d), and 940 CMR 29.10 (the Open Meeting Law and the supporting Regulations). Any newly elected Board Officer shall serve out the term of their predecessor. Fulfilling an incomplete term is not considered part of the term limit as a Board Officer.

Section 5: The Board Chair shall prepare the agenda and be responsible for disseminating necessary documents to be discussed at regular, special, and emergency meetings of the Board. The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Trustees except as the Trustees shall otherwise determine. The Chair is responsible

for managing the Board's development of strategic and accountability plans. The Chair shall work in collaboration with the School's Head of School to develop such reports as are necessary to keep the Board and community informed about the School's operations. The Chair or their designee is responsible to call all Roll Call votes in which remote participation occurs. The Board Chair shall serve as a non-voting ex officio member of all Committees and Task Forces and should not be included in the count when determining a quorum or in determining when a quorum is present. The Chair shall have such other powers and duties as are usually incident to that office and as may be vested in that office by these By-Laws or by the Trustees. A member of the School's faculty or staff may not serve as the Board Chair.

Section 6: The Vice-Chair shall understand and fulfill the responsibilities of the Board Chair in the event the office of the Chair becomes vacant, or the Chair is unable to perform their duties. The Vice-Chair shall have such powers and duties as are usually incident to that office and as the Trustees may from time to time designate.

Section 7: The Treasurer shall oversee all financial operations of MCCPS and shall be subject to the direction and control of the Board. The Treasurer shall oversee and ensure that full and accurate books and records of the accounts of the School are maintained, and shall oversee all School funds, securities, and valuable documents, in accordance with School policies, as well as federal and state laws. The Treasurer shall oversee all preparation of, and filings of financial documents required by federal law, state law, the Internal Revenue Service, and any other governmental or regulatory agency. The Treasurer shall serve as the Chair of the School's Finance Committee; and ensure that the Finance Committee complies with School policies, as well as federal and state laws. The Treasurer shall present reports to the Board at its regularly scheduled meetings, or whenever else a report may be required, updating the Board on all financial matters and including a balance sheet which sets forth current assets and liabilities of the School. The Treasurer should also provide reports on income statements and cash flow projections, as well as provide an explanation of the expenditures of the School in which the Board may have an interest, or which may be of interest to the community. All such reports shall be made available to the Trustees and are considered public record. A member of the School's faculty or staff may not serve as the Treasurer.

Section 8: The Clerk shall record and maintain accurate records of the Board's meetings, including special meetings, emergency meetings, and executive sessions. It shall be the Clerk's duty to prepare a record of each meeting setting forth the date, time and place of the meeting, and recording the members present or absent, and action taken at each meeting, including the results of any votes. Records from executive sessions shall be withheld from public inspection for so long as the need for secrecy that justifies the executive session in the first place still applies, but no longer. The Clerk shall ensure that all records of the Board are maintained in a book, a series of books, or online tool kept for that purpose and are in compliance with MGL Chapter 30A, sections 18-25. The Clerk shall provide notice of meetings of the Board as is required in these By-Laws and in compliance with the MGL Chapter 30A, sections 18-25. In the absence of the Clerk at any meeting of the Board, the presiding Officer shall designate a Trustee to perform any and all of the duties of the Clerk for that meeting and thereafter until the elected Clerk is able to resume their duties, or a new Clerk is elected by the Board in accordance with Article III, Section 4. In the event there are vacancies in the positions of Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board, the Clerk, if eligible, shall assume the duties of the Chair until such time as a new Chair is elected by the Board in accordance with Article III, Section 4. A quorum of members, including the chair or their designee, must be physically present at the meeting.

Section 9: In the event the office of the Chair becomes vacant, the Vice-Chair, if eligible, shall become interim Chair until a scheduled meeting of the Board can be held. In the event the office of Vice-Chair, Clerk, or Treasurer becomes vacant, the Chair shall appoint interim Officers to fill such vacant offices until a scheduled meeting of the Board can be held. Vacancies will be filled at that scheduled meeting in accordance with Article III, Section 4 of these By-Laws.

ARTICLE IV Meetings

Section 1: All meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 30A of the MGL, sections 18 to 25 and 940 CMR 29.00 (the "Open Meeting Law"), as the same may be amended from time to time, or any successor statute. Public notice of such meetings shall be given pursuant to MGL Chapter 30A, sections 18 to 25, and 940 CMR 29.03(1), (6), (7).

Section 2: Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees may be held at such times as the Board may determine. Meetings shall be held at the principal offices of MCCPS or at such other places within Massachusetts that the Board may determine that are accessible to the public and to persons with disabilities. The Board will meet at least nine (9) times annually and at least once a quarter. The frequency and the schedule of the meetings are specified by the Policies.

Section 3: The annual meeting of the Board of Trustees shall occur in June or as soon as possible thereafter in the event of unforeseen or extenuating circumstances. Notice shall be given to each Trustee in accordance with Massachusetts Open Meeting Law. Public notice of said meetings shall be given pursuant to MGL Chapter 30A, sections 18 to 25, and 940 CMR 29.00.

Section 4: Special meetings of the Board of Trustees may be called by the Chair or by a majority of the Board filing a written request for such a meeting with the Chair and stating the agenda, date, and hour of the meeting. Notice of said meetings shall be posted to the public pursuant to MGL Chapter 30A, sections 18-25. The Trustees will be notified by the Chair.

Section 5: The Board of Trustees may call Emergency Meetings in compliance with MGL Chapter 30A, sections 18-25 and applicable case law. An emergency meeting is a public meeting, although the Board need not comply with the Notice requirements as set forth in these By-Laws and/or pursuant to MGL Chapter 30A, sections 18-25 and 940 CMR 29.00. Notice of an emergency meeting should, however, be posted to the extent possible. An "emergency" is a pressing necessity, an exigency, a sudden and unexpected happening, an unforeseen occurrence or condition, an event or combination of circumstances that calls for immediate action. The subject matter to be discussed at the emergency meeting is strictly limited to that necessitated by the emergency. No other business may be discussed at an emergency meeting.

Section 6: More than fifty percent (50%) of the Trustees then in office must be physically present, including the Chair, or in the Chair's absence, the person authorized by the Chair to chair the meeting, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any regular, special, or emergency meeting of the Board of Trustees, and before remote participation and voting can occur. Trustees who participate remotely must be in compliance with the legal requirements as set forth in MGL section 30A, section 20 (d), and 940 CMR 29.10.

Section 7: Provided a quorum of Trustees is physically present, a simple majority vote of the Trustees participating in the meeting is required to take action, unless a supermajority vote is required by these By-Laws or by any law, regulation or DESE requirement applicable to the Board.

Section 8: The Board shall select its own meeting format in accordance with Article VIII. Any such meeting, whether regular, special, or emergency complying with Sections 1, 2, or 3 of Article IV, shall constitute a meeting of the Board of Trustees and shall subscribe to the policies, procedures, and rules approved by the Board.

Section 9: Notice of all annual, regular, or special meetings of the Board, an agenda of all items to be Comment [KS2]: Added a comma discussed at such meetings, and agenda support materials shall be circulated to all Trustees prior to the meeting. The attendance of a Trustee at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of their notice of such meeting,

5

except where a Trustee attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

Section 10: Because the Attorney General's Office encourages members of public bodies to physically attend all meetings, a member of the Board, Committee or Task Force may participate remotely in a meeting provided that such participation complies with the requirements as set forth in MGL section 30A, section 20 (d), and 940 CMR 29.10 (5), only if physical attendance would be unreasonably difficult. After the member notifies the Chair of his or her desire to participate remotely, the Chair shall determine whether the member's physical attendance would be unreasonably difficult for him or her, which may include such things as Personal Illness, Personal Disability, Emergency, Military Service, or Geographic Distance.

Section 11: The Board of Trustees shall not allow Trustees to vote by proxy.

Section 12: The Board of Trustees will approve and keep a record of every meeting including the time, the date, and the location of the meeting, the members present or absent, and all actions taken at the meeting, including formal votes taken.

ARTICLE V Staff

Section 1: The Board of Trustees shall appoint a Head of School, who shall be responsible for carrying out the work of the School in accordance with the policies established from time to time by the Board of Trustees and pursuant to applicable federal and state laws. The Head of School will be an ex officio member of the Board of Trustees, with all rights and responsibilities as other Trustees, except that the Head of School may not vote on any matter regarding their own employment, compensation, discipline, retention, or removal and may not serve as an Officer of the Board. As an ex officio member, the Head of School has exactly the same rights and privileges as do all other Trustees except as otherwise stated in these By-Laws including the right to vote on matters and to be counted when determining whether a quorum is present at board meetings. The Head of School shall serve as a non-voting ex officio member of all Committees and Task Forces and should not be included in the count when determining a quorum or in determining when a quorum is present.

Section 2. The Head of School shall have sole authority to exercise managerial powers over the day to day operations of the school and to select, appoint, evaluate, and/or remove the school faculty and staff in accordance with applicable federal and state laws and general School policies.

ARTICLE VI Committees and Task Forces

Section 1: The Board shall have the power to create Board Committees or Task Forces as it may from time to time deem necessary, pursuant to a vote by a majority of the Trustees in attendance at the time of the vote. Committees or Task Forces shall be composed of at least three members, one of whom must be a Trustee, and may include other Trustees and community members, teachers, or parents as determined by the Board. The Chair of a Committee or Task force is either a Trustee or a Committee / Task Force member, who is approved by an affirmative vote of the Board. A Committee or Task Force Chair may serve more than one (1) year term, but not more than three (3) consecutive year terms. The Board shall approve Committee or Task Force it creates. Every Committee or Task Force shall prepare reports to be submitted and presented by a representative of that group to the Board at each regularly scheduled Board meeting, or as may be required by the Board at special and/or emergency meetings. The reports shall inform the Board of the members on the Committee or Task Force, what work the Committee or Task Force has

done, what work still needs to be accomplished, and the time frame for completion of remaining work. The Board shall regularly assess and evaluate the need for continuation of specific Task Forces or Committees and dissolve them when they are no longer necessary or fulfilling the needs of the Board. The duties of an existing Task Force or Committee may be expanded to meet new requirements as defined by the Board.

Section 2: There shall be a Governance Committee, which is a standing committee that is supportive of the Board of Trustees. Committee members shall be appointed and may be removed by a majority vote of the Board at a regular or special meeting. The Governance Committee shall prepare reports to be submitted and presented by its chair, or a representative designated by its chair, to the Board at each regularly scheduled Board meeting, or as may be required by the Board at special and/or emergency meetings. The reports shall inform the Board of work done by the Committee, what it is working on, the time frame for completion of remaining work, and of any other matters that are within its jurisdiction.

The duties of the Governance Committee shall include but not be limited to the following:

- a) Conduct a periodic review of the By-Laws and Charter, and to make recommendations to the Board;
- b) Determine skills and qualities that would be useful for future Board members and identify potential candidates who possess those skills and qualities, and present the best qualified candidates to the Board as nominees to fill vacant positions on the Board as they become available;
- c) Provide training and orientation to new and existing Trustees on the Charter, By-Laws, policies and procedures;
- d) Develop and oversee a Trustee assessment process to ensure optimum performance;
- e) Develop necessary policies and procedures, which shall be approved by the Board, to accomplish these duties.

Section 3: There shall be a Finance Committee, which is a standing committee that is supportive of the Board of Trustees. Committee members shall be appointed and may be removed by a majority vote of the Board at a regular or special meeting. The Treasurer shall serve as Chair of the Finance Committee, who shall be elected by an affirmative vote of a majority of Trustees then in attendance. Ex officio members of the Finance Committee shall be the Chair of the Board and the Head of School who shall serve along with other Trustees and non-Trustees who shall be appointed, and may be removed by a majority vote of the Board at a regular or special meeting. Except for the Head of School, the ex officio members have exactly the same rights and privileges as do all other Finance Committee members, including the right to vote on matters and to be counted when determining whether a quorum is present. The Finance Committee shall ensure compliance with all appropriate federal and state laws.

The duties of the Finance Committee shall include but not be limited to the following:

- a) Assist and advise in preparing an annual budget for the charter school in collaboration with the School's Head of School;
- b) Develop and annually revise a five-year financial forecast, and develop long-range financial plans based on the forecast in collaboration with the School's Head of School;
- c) Review all unanticipated expenditures over limits set by policy and inform the Board;
- d) Arrange for an annual independent audit with submission of the same to the Board for approval;
- e) Report financial status and/or results for the most recent current period, year-to-date activity and forecasted cash flows for the end of the next reporting period to the Board at regular meetings of the Board;
- f) Develop necessary policies and procedures to accomplish these duties, which shall be approved by the Board.

Section 4: There shall be a Personnel Committee, which is a standing committee that is supportive of the Board of Trustees. Committee members shall be appointed and may be removed by a majority vote of the Board at a regular or special meeting. This Committee assumes the responsibility for advising the Board

on matters pertaining to the School's Head of School. This responsibility shall, in no way, interfere with the authority of the School's Head of School to hire, supervise and terminate the remaining staff of the School, in accordance with federal and state laws and School personnel policies.

The duties of the Personnel Committee shall include but not be limited to the following:

- a) Develop for Board review and approval of the annual process for the evaluation of the School's Head of School;
- b) Review and propose recommendations for amendments to policies as they pertain to legal issues relating to employees, employee benefits, employee relations and recruitment;
- c) Develop necessary policies and procedures to accomplish these duties, which shall be approved by the Board.

Section 5: Duties of all Standing Committees, Committees and Task Forces shall include:

- A. Selecting goals and actions for the academic year;
- B. Submitting goals to the Chair of the Board of Trustees;
- C. Filing reports at the end of each academic year and as requested by the Board;
- D. Adhering to MCCPS Policies and Procedures;
- E. Recommending updates to respective duties, policies and procedures, for approval by the Board.

ARTICLE VII Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the School shall begin on July 1 of each year and terminate on June 30 of the following year.

ARTICLE VIII Rules of Order

Except where they may be in conflict with the laws of the State or the Charter or By-Laws of the School, the rules of order as set forth in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of all meetings of the School.

ARTICLE IX Non-Discrimination

The MCCPS is an equal opportunity education institution and will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, age, genetic information, disability or veteran status in its admissions procedures, educational programs, services, activities or employment practices as required by Title VI, Title IX, Section 504 and/or any other applicable federal statute.

ARTICLE X Grievance Procedures

Section 1: Any parent, guardian, or other individuals or groups who believe that the School has violated or is violating any provision of M.G.L. c. 71, §89, or 603 CMR 1.00 may file a complaint with the Board.

Section 2: The Board shall respond in writing to the complaining party no later than 45 days from receipt

8

of the complaint.

Section 3: A complaining party who believes that complaint has not been adequately addressed by the Board may submit the complaint in writing to the Commissioner of Elementary and Secondary Education.

Section 4: In the event that a School is found in violation of 89 M.G.L. c. 71, §89, or 603 CMR 1.00, the Commissioner of Elementary and Secondary Education, or the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education may take such action as it deems appropriate.

Section 5: A parent, guardian, or other individuals or groups who believe that the school has violated or is violating any state or federal law or regulation regarding special education may file a complaint directly with the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education or pursuant to any federal laws they may feel is violated.

ARTICLE XI Indemnification

The School shall indemnify its Trustees, Officers, employees, and volunteers to the fullest extent permitted by the laws of the State and/or pursuant to any School insurance policies.

ARTICLE XII Amendments

The Charter or these By-Laws may be amended at a regular or special meeting by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of all Trustees then in office; provided that notice of the proposed amendment, together with a copy thereof, is mailed to each Trustee at least fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting at which the amendment is to be considered. Public notice of said meeting shall be given pursuant to MGL Chapter 30A, sections 18-25. All amendments to these By-Laws are subject to the approval of the State. All amendments approved by the Board shall be submitted to the State for approval within thirty (30) days of the affirmative vote of the Board.

ARTICLE XIII Miscellaneous

These By-Laws are intended to supersede all prior By-Laws. These By-Laws take effect upon the approval of the Commissioner of Education.